COUNTY OF OTSEGO INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY OTSEGO COUNTY CAPITAL RESOURCE CORPORATION

AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE JANUARY 12TH, 2023 MEETING MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER

The COIDA and OCCRC's joint Audit & Finance Committee meeting was called to order at 8:02am at the Otsego Now offices at 189 Main Street in Oneonta, NY. Members present included:

Jeffrey Lord Patricia Kennedy
David Rowley Tom Armao
James Seward Craig Gelbsman*
Andrew Marietta Jeffrey Joyner*

Also, in attendance:

STAFF

Jody Zakrevsky, **CEO**Meaghan Marino, **Dir. of Finance and Admin.**Kurt Schulte, **Agency Counsel (v)***A. Joseph Scott, **Bond Counsel (v)**

*departed before end of meeting (v) virtual

CHAIR'S COMMENTS

J. Lord, Chair of the Audit & Finance Committee, welcomed members and staff and moved immediately into the agenda.

MEETING MINUTES

J. Lord requested a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the December 8th Audit & Finance Committee meeting. Members were given the draft minutes prior to the meeting for review. There being no corrections, J. Joyner made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. D. Rowley seconded the motion, and it was approved by remaining members.

PAYMENT OF BILLS

- M. Marino reviewed the bills and deposits made since the December Audit & Finance committee meeting. Committee members received a report of the expenses and deposits prior to the meeting to review. Most of the bills presented were normal operating expenses for the agency. D. Rowley asked for confirmation that the bill labeled JMS was associated with the IOXUS building repair. M. Marino clarified that she was waiting for a report of the work done on the IOXUS building before paying the bill. C. Gelbsman asked about the two Paperkite bills for \$9,000 and \$16,000. M. Marino explained that the first bill was for the December marketing campaign and the second was for the January marketing campaign, which had increased in price because of the new landing page that Paperkite was creating. She noted that this amount goes towards the \$48,000 that is paid to Paperkite over the course of the year. D. Rowley asked what the coverage of the insurance umbrella was, and M. Marino said that she believed it was \$5 million. J. Lord asked if the annual premium was paid over the course of six months and M. Marino confirmed that it is paid over the course of six months, ending in July. C. Gelbsman asked M. Marino why the cost of the insurance went up and she replied that the cost of business in general is up. J. Lord and T. Armao noted that there should be a cost comparison done for the next year.
- J. Lord drew attention to a housekeeping item on the list of COIDA deposits and stated that the rent amount paid by IOXUS should have read \$5,000 rather than \$500. T. Armao asked if the office, being rented by Congressman Pat Ryan, would continue to be rented out by the US House of Representatives for Congressman Marc Molinaro. M. Marino replied that no one has reached out to say that the space will continue to be rented out and that the lease is up as of January 3, 2023. She said she would reach out to them to see if they would like to continue renting the space. J. Seward also commented that he could reach out to the new Congressman to see if there is an interest in the space.
- J. Seward made a motion to pay the expenses listed before the committee. D. Rowley seconded the motion, and it was approved by remaining members present through a voice vote.

REVIEW OF FINANCIALS

- J. Zakrevsky reviewed the financials and stated that the assets are up by about \$41,000, most of which is in the checking account. He noted that there was nothing out of the ordinary for the month of December, 2022 and the end of the year. J. Lord pointed out that the income was greater than \$154,000 because of the recovery of a written off asset (a loan that had been put in reserves, but was paid off in 2022) worth approximately \$46,000. These funds were not counted as operating revenue, so if added, it would be over \$200,000. J. Zakrevsky explained that after going through his yearly budget and annual expenses, there was a slight loss in 2022 of about \$2,300, however, that number doesn't take into account depreciation and accounts payable, for example, he notes that the agency is still waiting for \$150,000 from the State for the Rail Yard project. He stated that the biggest unforeseen expenditures were connected to consulting fees. J. Zakrevsky noted that the MRB Group was hired to work on the application for EDA grant, as well as Barton & Loguidice administering that same grant, but he stated that theoretically 50% of that amount is reimbursable.
- D. Rowley asked about the status of the USDA Rise Innovation grant if those funds had been awarded. J. Zakrevsky responds that he has not heard anything back yet. J. Zakrevsky explained that no awards have been made from that program yet, even though he had expected announcements to be made in October,

2022. He went on to say that he went through several press releases on the program, and although some organizations claim that they have been awarded, USDA has not actually put out a list of awardees.

NEW AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Burr Truck Lease – J. Zakrevsky noted at the last committee meeting where the Burr Truck lease was raised, there was a question of whether to increase the rent for the next year. T. Armao expressed that because prices are going up in general, and Burr Truck is an established business, the rent should increase. C. Gelbsman asked for J. Zakrevsky's recommendation. J. Zakrevsky stated that he met with the landlord for the OtsegoNow space at 189 Main Street, and they agreed to hold the agency's rent at the current rate for at least the next year. He went on to say that the average inflation is 6% and requested from the committee a minimum of a 5% increase for Burr Truck. J. Seward asked if there has ever been an increase in their rent amount. M. Marino explained that this is the third year that Burr Truck would be renting from the IDA and the rent has been \$4,295 for the past two years. J. Lord asked if staff had clarified the structure of the lease and M. Marino said that she did not clarify with Burr Truck, but that it was assumed that the lease would be a one-year term which would be reassessed in a year. J. Lord verified with the staff that the rent is to be raised by 6% with a one-year contract. J. Lord also referenced the minutes from the previous meeting and said Burr Truck had expressed interest in purchasing the building they are currently renting from the IDA (139 Commerce Road, Oneonta), but they dedicated their capital to acquiring a different building in Binghamton, NY.

NYS Retirement for Employees - J. Zakrevsky explained that the estimated cost to participate in the NYS Retirement System would be \$11,630 for the first year, with the estimated annual contribution at \$9,475. He stated that he would not be making a recommendation on this issue at this meeting because there would be a 3.5% charge for each employee to join and he would like to weigh the options. Although he feels the NYS Retirement System is a great system for employees to be a part of, potentially better than a typical IRA, once the IDA joins the system the agency is locked into it for perpetuity. He suggested that he will compare the NYS Retirement System to creating an IRA account because it would cost less than the annual contribution to the NYS Retirement System. With the IRA account, the 3.5% charge would be matched by the employees. The committee discussed both options for a few minutes, but there were more questions about both programs that needed answers before a decision could be made. J. Lord asked for a cost/benefit analysis for both the employer and the employee to better understand the two options. J. Zakrevsky added that the challenging part is calculating which option would be the most beneficial after five years. J. Seward, the newest member of the board, questioned if there was any sort of retirement benefit currently in place. J. Zakrevsky confirmed that there is not, but because he gets his retirement benefits from a previous job, it would be good for the IDA board to enroll in a retirement program or else there could be an issue finding executive staff in the future, assuming they haven't already acquired these benefits from previous jobs.

Northern Eagle – Upon exiting from executive session, counsel J. Scott, questioned if the board was going to discuss the Northern Eagle PILOT and if they should have done it in executive session. M. Marino explained that it could be discussed in open session, as the issue seems to have been a misunderstanding between the County of Otsego and the Town of Oneonta about whether the business was sold or not, and how that affected their PILOT. She explained that she has a meeting in the next week with the owner of the company, and depending on the outcome of that discussion, she will involve agency attorneys, if needed. After a bit of confusion, J. Zakrevsky explained that the Town contacted the County Treasurer to advise that Northern Eagle had sold their business and that the new owners wanted to end their PILOT with the IDA. However, when M. Marino reached out to George Allen, owner of Northern Eagle, he explained that this was not the case and that they had only sold certain assets, and not the business or the property. A. Marietta did note that Northern Eagle has substantially cut down on

their staff numbers, which could pose a problem for PILOT requirements, but M. Marino would address it in the meeting with the owner.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

D. Rowley made a motion to enter executive session, with committee members and the CEO of the agency, under the Public Officers Law, Article 7, Open Meetings Law Section 105, at 8:22am for the following reasons: To discuss the financial history of an outstanding loan with the agency. J. Seward seconded the motion, and it was approved by all committee members present. The committee entered executive session at 8:22am.

There was no action taken in executive session.

P. Kennedy made a motion to enter back into public session; D. Rowley seconded, and all members approved. The committee exited executive session at 9:01am.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, P. Kennedy made a motion to adjourn the Audit & Finance committee meeting at 9:11am.

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE

The next Audit & Finance Committee meeting is February 7, 2023 at 8:00am.